
 

 

 

Finance Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
This meeting will be held in person at the County Council Chambers, 100 Ribaut Road, 

Beaufort, and virtually through Zoom. 

Monday, August 22, 2022 
2:00 PM 

AGENDA 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
  MARK LAWSON, CHAIRMAN                              CHRIS HERVOCHON, VICE-CHAIRMAN 
  GERALD DAWSON                               BRIAN FLEWELLING 
   STEWART RODMAN 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - June 20, 2022 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS - (ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the 
meeting will limit their comments to no longer than three (3) minutes ( a total of 15 minutes ) and will 
address Council in a respectful manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the 
use of profane, abusive, or obscene language) 

7. DIVISION UPDATE FROM ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, DALE BUTTS 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

8. DISCUSSION AND PRESENTATION OF YEAR TO DATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FY 2023, HAYES 
WILLIAMS, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  

9. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN AWARD TO FIRST TRYON ADVISORS FOR FINANCIAL ADVISORY 
CONSULTING SERVICES FOR BEAUFORT COUNTY DEBT ISSUES 

10. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN AWARD TO JOHNSON CONSULTING FOR THE SAINT HELENA ISLAND 
PERFORMING ARTS CENTER FEASIBILITY STUDY AND MARKET ANALYSIS SERVICES FOR BEAUFORT 
COUNTY (FISCAL IMPACT $66,000) 

11. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN AWARD TO HGAC BUY COOPERATIVE FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
REPLACEMENT AMBULANCES (FISCAL IMPACT: $817,220 FOR FOUR AMBULANCES) 

1



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

12. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE ARPA GOOD NEIGHBOR PROGRAM, MUNICIPALITY FUNDING REQUESTS 
(FISCAL IMPACT TOTAL $950,000: CITY OF BEAUFORT $250,000; TOWN OF PORT ROYAL $500,000; TOWN 
OF YEMASSEE $200,000) 

13. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT ARPA PROJECTS REQUEST 
(FISCAL IMPACT: $1,000,000.00 FROM THE ARPA ALLOCATION) 

14. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE HIRING OF AN ADDITIONAL FULL-TIME 
EMPLOYEE IN THE PUBLIC DEFENDER'S OFFICE TO SERVE COLLETON COUNTY  

15. DISCUSSION OF AN ORDINANCE TO ALLOCATE THE PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF THE MYRTLE BUSINESS 
PARK TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SITE AND JOB FUND 

16. DISCUSSION REGARDING OFFER OF PAYMENT TO FOURTH AND FINAL GROUP OF RETIREES FOR LOSS OF 
POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS 

17. ADJOURNMENT 

TO WATCH COMMITTEE OR COUNTY COUNCIL MEETINGS OR FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF AGENDAS AND 
BACKUP PACKAGES, PLEASE VISIT: 

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html 

2

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html


 

 

Finance Committee 
Beaufort County, SC 

This meeting was held at the County Council Chambers, 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort, and 
virtually through Zoom. 

Monday, June 20, 2022 

2:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Watch the video stream available on the County's website to hear the full discussion or presentation on a 
specific topic or the complete meeting. https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Committee Chairman Lawson called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 

PRESENT 
Committee Chairman Mark Lawson 
Council Member Joseph F. Passiment 
Council Member Gerald Dawson 
Council Member Brian Flewelling 
Council Member Stu Rodman 
Council Member York Glover 
Council Member Alice Howard 
Council Member Lawrence McElynn 

ABSENT 
Council Member Sommerville 
Committee Vice-Chairman Chris Hervochon 
Council Member Logan Cunningham 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Committee Chairman Lawson led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. FOIA 

Committee Chairman Lawson noted that the Public Notification of this meeting had been published, 
posted, and distributed in compliance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act. 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded by Council Member Glover to approve 
the agenda. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection. 

3

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818


Finance Committee Meeting Minutes – Beaufort County, SC  

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Council Member Glover, to approve the 
minutes from May 16, 2022. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection. 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

No Citizens Comments. 

7. DIVISION UPDATE FROM ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, DALE BUTTS 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=101 

Assistant County Administrator Dale Butts provided updates on the installation of new equipment in the 
Register of Deeds Office, the development of how-to guides by the Procurement Services Department, 
and the use of ClearGov to create budgetary documents. 

8. DISCUSSION AND PRESENTATION OF YEAR-TO-DATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2022, CHIEF 
FINANCIAL OFFICER, HAYES WILLIAMS 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=247 

Chief Financial Officer Hayes Williams discussed the Year-to-Date Financial Statements for 2022, including 
financial highlights, expenditure breakdowns, and revenue breakdowns. 

County Administrator Eric Greenway, Deputy Attorney Brittany Ward, and the Committee discussed the 
sale of county properties and where the proceeds will be directed. 

9. PRESENTATION OF THE 2022-2023 MARKETING PLAN FOR THE GREATER BEAUFORT- PORT ROYAL 
CONVENTION AND VISITORS’ BUREAU 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=831 

Robb Wells presented the marketing successes of FY 2021-2022, the marketing plan for 2022-2023, the 
DMO investment breakdown, and the 2023 budget. 

The Committee and Wells discussed the destination heat map of visitors from core and opportunity 
markets. 

10. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE BEAUFORT COUNTY PERSONNEL 
HANDBOOK SECTION 4.1.2 "HOLIDAYS" (FISCAL IMPACT: WILL BE DETERMINED YEARLY IF THE HOLIDAY 
IS OBSERVED) 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=1616 

Brittany Ward, Eric Greenway, and the Committee discussed the proposed amendment to the personnel 
handbook to allow the County Administrator to provide staff with an additional day of Christmas holiday 
when appropriate. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Dawson, Seconded by Council Member Howard, to recommend 
approval of a Resolution Amending the Beaufort County Personnel Handbook Section 4.1.2 "Holidays.” 

4

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=101
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=247
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=831
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=1616


Finance Committee Meeting Minutes – Beaufort County, SC  

The Vote - Voting Yea: Council Member Dawson, Council Member Glover, Council Member Howard, and 
Council Member Passiment. Voting Nay: Committee Chairman Lawson, Council Member Flewelling, 
Council Member Rodman, and Council Member McElynn. The motion failed 4:4. 

11. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO SIGN 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS WITH BEAUFORT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL (BMH) FOR THE FUNDING AND 
LAUNCH OF A PILOT PROGRAM TO ENHANCE THE NURSING WORKFORCE (FISCAL IMPACT: THIS 
PROGRAM IS FUNDED BY ARPA FUNDS- TWO YEAR PROGRAM COST OF $700,000) 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=2139 

Hank Amundson and the Committee discussed the Beaufort Memorial Hospital nursing pilot program. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Council Member Rodman, to 
recommend approval of a Resolution to authorize the County Administrator to sign necessary documents 
with Beaufort Memorial Hospital (BMH) for the funding and launch of a Pilot Program to enhance the 
Nursing Workforce. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection. 

12. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO SIGN 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS WITH BEAUFORT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL FOR MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES AT 
THE DETENTION CENTER (FISCAL IMPACT: $1,000,000 OF ARPA FUNDS; 3-YEAR INITIAL TERM CONTRACT 
WITH ANNUAL RENEWALS BY CONSENT OF THE PARTIES- BUDGETING $250,000 ANNUALLY) 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=2754 

Hank Amundson, Phil Foot, and the Committee discussed the provision of mental health services to the 
Detention Center. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Glover, Seconded by Council Member Rodman, to recommend 
approval of a Resolution to Authorize the County Administrator to sign necessary documents with 
Beaufort Memorial Hospital for Mental Health Services at the Detention Center. 

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection. 

13. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A FEE SCHEDULE FOR PLANNING AND ZONING 
PERMITS 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=3373 

Robert Merchant and the Committee discussed a proposed update to the fee schedule for planning and 
zoning permits. Merchant agreed to update the item’s backup materials to display changes through a side-
by-side comparison of the current and proposed fee schedule. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, Seconded by Council Member Howard, to 
recommend approval of a Resolution to adopt a Fee Schedule for Planning and Zoning permits. 

Discussion: Council Member McElynn objected to the motion. 

Motion to Postpone: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded by Council Member Glover, 
to postpone this item and bring it forward to the next Finance Committee meeting on August 22, 2022. 

Discussion: Council Member McElynn commented on the need for the Committee to receive a full 
explanation of the proposal to answer questions raised by Committee members. 

5

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=2139
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=2754
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/175818?ts=3373


Finance Committee Meeting Minutes – Beaufort County, SC  

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection. 

Discussion: The Committee reiterated its request for a side-by-side fee comparison. 

14. BOARD OF ASSESSMENT & APPEALS VACANCIES - 4 VACANCIES/NON-DISTRICT SPECIFIC 

No comment or discussion. 

15. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjournment: 3:09 PM 

 
Ratified: 

6

Item 5.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Discussion and presentation of year to date financial statements for FY 2023. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee 08/22/2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hayes Williams Chief Financial Officer  

15 Minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Discussion and presentation of the year to date financial reports for FY 2023.   

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Discussion and presentation of the year to date financial reports for FY 2023 and highlights of 2022 
year. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

None. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Discussion and related questions. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

N/A  

 

7

Item 8.



General Fund Revenues
Budget FY 2023: 142,118,807$                     
Revenue Collected to Date: 2,822,842$                         
Revenue Collected Over Budget: (139,295,965)$                    

Percent of Total Budget Collected: 1.99%
Percent of Year Completed: 8.33%

Revenue Analysis 

Function Budget To Date % Received % Year Completed
Ad Valorem taxes 108,773,146$            708,822$                            0.65% 8.33%
Licenses & permits 3,958,000$                288,258$                            7.28% 8.33%
Intergovernmental 10,783,780$              -$                                    0.00% 8.33%
Charges for services 15,089,113$              1,784,465$                         11.83% 8.33%
Fines and forfeitures 770,018$                   7,462$                                0.97% 8.33%
Interest 156,000$                   32,832$                              21.05% 8.33%
Miscellaneous revenues 335,000$                   1,003$                                0.30% 8.33%
Transfers in 2,253,750$                -$                                    0.00% 8.33%
For revenues with variances over 5% of the year completed, a brief explanation is provided below:

Ad Valorem taxes - currently lagging should improve as year progresses.
Intergovernmental - currently lagging, do not expect payments until after first quarter.
Fines and forfeitures - currently lagging should improve as year progresses.
Interest - interest rates are increasing in the current market.
Miscellaneous revenues - currently lagging should improve as year progresses.
Transfers in - typically do not transfer in until end of first quarter

Executive Summary of Revenues and Expenditures
Through July 31, 2022

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

General Fund Revenues through July 2022 

2023 2022

8

Item 8.



General Fund Expenditures
Budget FY 2023: 142,112,406$                     

Actual Expenditures to Date: 9,859,809$                         
Encumbrances: 7,225,177$                         
Total Expensed & Encumbered to Date: 17,084,986$                       
Remaining budget FY 2022 125,027,420$                     

Percent of Total Budget Expended: 12.02%
Percent of Year Completed: 91.67%

Expense Analysis
Function Budget To Date % Received % Year Completed

General Government 56,854,182$              6,549,630$                         11.52% 8.33%
Public Safety 51,622,230$              7,274,884$                         14.09% 8.33%
Public Works 12,521,541$              535,751$                            4.28% 8.33%
Public Health 3,699,991$                800,868$                            21.65% 8.33%
Public Welfare 672,476$                   12,678$                              1.89% 8.33%
Culture & Recreation 16,067,423$              1,911,175$                         11.89% 8.33%
Other 674,563$                   -$                                    0.00% 8.33%
For expenditures with variances over 5% of the year completed, a brief explanation is provided below:
Public Health  - paid first quarter of  indigent care payments.
Public Welfare  - lagging, should increase when Human Services Alliance is awarded.
Other - No expenditures

Executive Summary of Revenues and Expenditures
Through July 31, 2022

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

General Government Public Safety Public Works Public Health Public welfare Culture & Recreation Other

General Fund Expenditures through July 2022

2023 2022

9

Item 8.



Approved Revised Actual

Budget  Budget  Received

6/30/2023 6/30/2023 7/31/2022 Variances

Ad Valorem taxes

Current taxes 98,883,996$          98,883,996$          49,569$                     (98,834,427)$        

Delinquent taxes 1,471,616               1,471,616               ‐                             (1,471,616)            

Automobile taxes 7,467,534               7,467,534               659,253                     (6,808,281)            

3% & 7% penalties on tax 450,000                  450,000                  ‐                             (450,000)                

5% penalties on tax 500,000                  500,000                  ‐                             (500,000)                

Total Ad Valorem taxes 108,773,146          108,773,146          708,822                     (108,064,324)        

Licenses & permits 

Building permits 1,050,000               1,050,000               115,924                     (934,076)                

Electricians' licenses 18,000                    18,000                    ‐                             (18,000)                  

Mobile home permits 10,000                    10,000                    225                            (9,775)                    

Marriage licenses 55,000                    55,000                    3,910                         (51,090)                  

Cable television franchises 450,000                  450,000                  ‐                             (450,000)                

Business license 2,300,000               2,300,000               168,199                     (2,131,801)            

Alcohol beverage license 75,000                    75,000                    ‐                             (75,000)                  

Total licenses and permits 3,958,000               3,958,000               288,258                     (3,669,742)            

Intergovernmental 

State aid to subdivisions 7,951,200               7,951,200               ‐                             (7,951,200)            

Homestead exemption 2,150,000               2,150,000               ‐                             (2,150,000)            

Merchants inventory tax 186,000                  186,000                  ‐                             (186,000)                

Manufacturer tax exempt program 23,200                    23,200                    ‐                             (23,200)                  

Motor carrier payments 200,000                  200,000                  ‐                             (200,000)                

Payments in lieu of taxes 100,000                  100,000                  ‐                             (100,000)                

Payments in lieu of taxes ‐ federal 17,000                    17,000                    ‐                             (17,000)                  

Local assessment fee UBER 9,500                      9,500                      ‐                             (9,500)                    

Veteran's Officer stipend 5,500                      5,500                      ‐                             (5,500)                    

Voter regulation and election stipends 13,500                    13,500                    ‐                             (13,500)                  

Salary supplements for state 7,880                      7,880                      ‐                             (7,880)                    

Poll 5,000                      5,000                      ‐                             (5,000)                    

FEMA grant  ‐                           ‐                           ‐                             ‐                          

Total intergovernmental  10,783,780            10,783,780            ‐                             (10,783,780)          

Charges for services

Register of Deeds 8,908,316               8,908,316               1,735,296                 (7,173,020)            

Sheriff's fees 43,900                    43,900                    ‐                             (43,900)                  

Probate fees 715,000                  715,000                  29,151                       (685,849)                

Solicitor fees 1,600                      1,600                      ‐                             (1,600)                    

Magistrate fees 121,000                  121,000                  ‐                             (121,000)                

Clerk of Court fees 130,821                  130,821                  ‐                             (130,821)                

Family Court fees 313,126                  313,126                  ‐                             (313,126)                

Master in Equity fees 100,000                  100,000                  9,635                         (90,365)                  

Treasurer fees 15,100                    15,100                    1,619                         (13,481)                  

Emergency Medical Service Fees 3,613,000               3,613,000               ‐                             (3,613,000)            

DSO fees 81,000                    81,000                    6,643                         (74,357)                  

Animal Shelter fees 7,000                      7,000                      ‐                             (7,000)                    

Library copy fees 3,000                      3,000                      171                            (2,829)                    

Other fees 7,500                      7,500                      1,950                         (5,550)                    

Video Production 75,000                    75,000                    ‐                             (75,000)                  

Telephone services others 5,000                      5,000                      ‐                             (5,000)                    

Detention Center Daywatch 3,300                      3,300                      ‐                             (3,300)                    

Hilton Head Island holding facilities 34,800                    34,800                    ‐                             (34,800)                  

Payroll services to Fire Departments 13,000                    13,000                    ‐                             (13,000)                  

Credit card convenience fees 11,050                    11,050                    ‐                             (11,050)                  

Parks and recreation fees 886,600                  886,600                  ‐                             (886,600)                

Project income ‐                           ‐                           ‐                             ‐                          

Total charges for services 15,089,113            15,089,113            1,784,465                 (13,304,648)          

Beaufort County

Detail of Revenues ‐ General Fund

For the Period July 1, 2022 ‐ July 31, 2022

10

Item 8.



Approved Revised Actual

Budget  Budget  Received

6/30/2023 6/30/2023 7/31/2022 Variances

Beaufort County

Detail of Revenues ‐ General Fund

For the Period July 1, 2022 ‐ July 31, 2022

Fines and forfeitures

General Sessions fines 11,918                    11,918                    ‐                             (11,918)                  

Bonds escreatment 3,000                      3,000                      ‐                             (3,000)                    

Magistrate fines 546,600                  546,600                  ‐                             (546,600)                

Other fines 15,000                    15,000                    ‐                             (15,000)                  

Library fines 42,500                    42,500                    4,023                         (38,477)                  

Forfeiture 1,000                      1,000                      ‐                             (1,000)                    

Late penalties ‐ Business Services 150,000                  150,000                  3,439                         (146,561)                

Total fines and forfeitures 770,018                  770,018                  7,462                         (762,556)                

Interest 156,000                  156,000                  32,832                       (123,168)                

Miscellaneous revenues

Miscellaneous revenues 60,000                    60,000                    3                                 (59,997)                  

Rental of property to others 25,000                    25,000                    1,000                         (24,000)                  

Sale of County property  250,000                  250,000                  ‐                             (250,000)                

Total miscellaneous revenues 335,000                  335,000                  1,003                         (333,997)                

Transfers in

Transfers in other funds 433,750                  433,750                  ‐                             (433,750)                

Transfer from State Accommodations tax 112,000                  112,000                  ‐                             (112,000)                

Transfer from Hospitality tax fund 1,708,000               1,708,000               ‐                             (1,708,000)            

Total transfers in 2,253,750               2,253,750               ‐                             (2,253,750)            

Total revenues General Fund 142,118,807$        142,118,807$        2,822,842$               (139,295,965)$      

11

Item 8.



Approved Revised Spent &

Budget  Budget  Encumbered

6/30/2023 6/30/2023 7/31/2022 Variances

General Government

Magistrate's Court  2,478,889$             2,478,889$             172,051$                2,306,838$            

Clerk of Court and Family Court 1,690,279               1,690,279               102,195                   1,588,084              

Treasurer  2,293,412               2,293,412               74,863                     2,218,549              

Solicitor 1,700,450               1,700,450               425,113                   1,275,337              

Probate Court 1,061,610               1,061,610               64,513                     997,097                  

County Council 1,241,011               1,241,011               38,358                     1,202,653              

Auditor 1,314,900               1,314,900               67,593                     1,247,307              

Coroner 1,007,154               1,007,154               28,072                     979,082                  

Master in Equity 416,915                   416,915                   23,331                     393,584                  

Legislative Delegation 58,386                     58,386                     3,269                       55,117                    

County Administrator 1,978,054               1,978,054               122,974                   1,855,080              

Communications & accountability 491,284                   491,284                   20,904                     470,380                  

Broadcast services 525,366                   525,366                   25,651                     499,715                  

County Attorney 1,018,945               1,018,945               42,995                     975,950                  

Finance 1,738,816               1,619,729               123,949                   1,495,780              

Risk management 4,582,865               4,582,865               197,676                   4,385,189              

Purchasing 257,953                   257,953                   18,272                     239,681                  

Assessor 2,261,414               2,261,414               118,865                   2,142,549              

Register of deeds 477,535                   477,535                   23,105                     454,430                  

Community planning and development 1,202,496               1,202,496               64,989                     1,137,507              

Business services 392,903                   392,903                   4,617                       388,286                  

Voter registration and elections 1,341,324               1,341,324               65,936                     1,275,388              

Management & Geographical information systems 7,900,628               7,900,628               2,451,323               5,449,305              

Records Management 697,715                   697,715                   43,400                     654,315                  

Employee services  993,120                   993,120                   132,449                   860,671                  

Nondepartmental 17,849,845             17,849,845             2,093,167               15,756,678            

Total General Government 56,973,269             56,854,182             6,549,630               50,304,552            

Public Safety

Sheriff's office 29,296,336             29,296,336             3,944,180               25,352,156            

EMS Emergency Medical Service 11,812,985             11,812,985             712,492                   11,100,493            

Traffic and transportation engineering 376,889                   376,889                   26,129                     350,760                  

Detention Center 7,445,410               7,445,410               1,799,907               5,645,503              

Building and codes enforcement 1,424,772               1,424,772               75,266                     1,349,506              

Animal services 1,265,838               1,265,838               716,910                   548,928                  

Total Public Safety 51,622,230             51,622,230             7,274,884               44,347,346            

Public Works

Public works general support 4,205,931               4,205,931               217,328                   3,988,603              

Engineering 1,023,257               1,023,257               40,532                     982,725                  

Facilities maintenance 7,173,266               7,292,353               277,891                   7,014,462              

Total Public Works 12,402,454             12,521,541             535,751                   11,985,790            

Public Health

Mosquito control 1,820,155               1,820,155               330,909                   1,489,246              

Medical indigent act contributions 1,879,836               1,879,836               469,959                   1,409,877              

Total Public Health 3,699,991               3,699,991               800,868                   2,899,123              

Public Welfare Services

Veteran's affairs office 274,476                   274,476                   12,678                     261,798                  

Human services alliance 398,000                   398,000                   ‐                            398,000                  

Total Public Welfare Services 672,476                   672,476                   12,678                     659,798                  

Cultural and Recreational

Parks and recreation services 6,422,336               6,422,336               365,528                   6,056,808              

Beaufort County

Detail of Expenditures ‐ General Fund

For the Period July 1, 2022 ‐ July 31, 2022

12

Item 8.



Approved Revised Spent &

Budget  Budget  Encumbered

6/30/2023 6/30/2023 7/31/2022 Variances

Beaufort County

Detail of Expenditures ‐ General Fund

For the Period July 1, 2022 ‐ July 31, 2022

Libraries 4,473,435               4,473,435               252,734                   4,220,701              

Education allocation 5,171,652               5,171,652               1,292,913               3,878,739              

Total Cultural and Recreational 16,067,423             16,067,423             1,911,175               14,156,248            

Other ‐ Economic Development 674,563                   674,563                   ‐                            674,563                  

Total Expenditures General Fund 142,112,406$        142,112,406$        17,084,986$           125,027,420$       

13

Item 8.



Finance Report July 2022

14

Item 8.



Beaufort County –Audit Update July 2022

 Finance is in the process of closing out Fiscal Year 2022 by preparing schedules for the 
Auditor and uploading them into Suralink.

 Finance staff is preparing and posting the accruals for year end cutoff which will be 
August 30, 2022.

 Staff will work on reconciliations and allocations through September and Early October.

 Expect to have auditor doing fieldwork in late October.

15

Item 8.



Beaufort County – Rural and Critical Discussion 

 Since the inception of the Rural Critical Land Programs (RCLP) Beaufort County has 
had five ballot referendums for the RCLP over twenty-two years. The total amount of 
debt approved and issued by referendums was $160 million. 

 Currently the balance of debt remaining is $89 million.

 Current funding left available for the RCLP is approximately $15 million. 

 The RCLP has allowed Beaufort County to preserve over 25,000 acres for conservation, 
parks, buffers, scenic vistas and for the preservation of valuable economic and natural 
resources.

16

Item 8.



Beaufort County – Financial Highlights July 2022 

 The 2022-2023 budget was uploaded into Munis for departments at the beginning of the 
year.

 An e-mail was sent on July 1, 2022 to department heads and ACA’s to tell them to 
proceed with  capital assets purchase and projects as soon as possible. 

 Beaufort County will be paying $3.2 million in budgeted bond related interest. Payments 
are due from August 2022 - November 2022.

 At June 30, 2022 had total outstanding debt of $186,535,000. The breakdown is as 
follows: Bluffton Parkway $12,269,100; County Road Improvement $351,019; County 
GO Bond Debt $76,651,020; PALS Impact Fees $3,401,433; Rural and Critical 
$88,921,252; Stormwater Utility $4,941,176.

17

Item 8.



General Fund Revenues

Budget FY 2023: 142,118,807$                   

Revenue Collected to Date: 2,822,842$                      

Revenue Collected Over Budget: (139,295,965)$                  

Percent of Total Budget Collected: 1.99%

Percent of Year Completed: 8.33%

Executive Summary of Revenues and Expenditures

Through July 31, 2022

Function Budget To Date % Received % Year Completed

Ad Valorem taxes 108,773,146$           708,822$                         0.65% 8.33%

Licenses & permits 3,958,000$              288,258$                         7.28% 8.33%

Intergovernmental 10,783,780$            -$                               0.00% 8.33%

Charges for services 15,089,113$            1,784,465$                      11.83% 8.33%

Fines and forfeitures 770,018$                 7,462$                            0.97% 8.33%

Interest 156,000$                 32,832$                           21.05% 8.33%

Miscellaneous revenues 335,000$                 1,003$                            0.30% 8.33%

Transfers in 2,253,750$              -$                               0.00% 8.33%

For revenues with variances over 5% of the year completed, a brief explanation is provided below:

Ad Valorem taxes - currently lagging should improve as year progresses.

Intergovernmental - currently lagging, do not expect payments until after first quarter.

Fines and forfeitures - currently lagging should improve as year progresses.

Interest - interest rates are increasing in the current market.

Miscellaneous revenues - currently lagging should improve as year progresses.

Transfers in - typically do not transfer in until end of first quarter

18

Item 8.



General Fund Expenditures

Budget FY 2023: 142,112,406$                   

Actual Expenditures to Date: 9,859,809$                      

Encumbrances: 7,225,177$                      

Total Expensed & Encumbered to Date: 17,084,986$                     

Remaining budget FY 2022 125,027,420$                   

Percent of Total Budget Expended: 12.02%

Percent of Year Completed: 91.67%

Executive Summary of Revenues and Expenditures

Through July 31, 2022

Function Budget To Date % Received % Year Completed

General Government 56,854,182$            6,549,630$                      11.52% 8.33%

Public Safety 51,622,230$            7,274,884$                      14.09% 8.33%

Public Works 12,521,541$            535,751$                         4.28% 8.33%

Public Health 3,699,991$              800,868$                         21.65% 8.33%

Public Welfare 672,476$                 12,678$                           1.89% 8.33%

Culture & Recreation 16,067,423$            1,911,175$                      11.89% 8.33%

Other 674,563$                 -$                               0.00% 8.33%

For expenditures with variances over 5% of the year completed, a brief explanation is provided below:

Public Health  - paid first quarter of  indigent care payments.

Public Welfare  - lagging, should increase when Human Services Alliance is awarded.

Other - No expenditures

19

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
ITEM TITLE: 

Financial Advisory Consulting Services for Beaufort County Debt Issues 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee – August 22, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hayes Williams, CFO 

5 Minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The County is seeking to retain the services of financial advisor to advise it in connection with its general 
obligation bond financings, certificates of participation and related projects. Issuance may include a full range of 
available financing techniques, including the following: instruments which may be sold in the taxable bond 
markets, the tax-exempt bond markets, or the commercial paper markets; instruments which may be secured by 
letters of credit, pledges of various sources of revenue, bond insurance, or other credit enhancement; equipment 
financing; and other instruments for which markets may develop during the term of the Contract. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

A Request for Proposal was published on May 6, 2022. Proposals were due on June 7, 2022, which 3 
firms proposed. Once the Evaluation Team evaluated the proposals and rated them. First Tryon 
Advisors was the top ranked firm. The term of the contract will be for two (2) years with three (3) 
additional One (1) year term. The Evaluation Score Sheet is attached.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Annual costs are not available as the Financial Consultant is paid from an account set up by the Bond 
Counsel. The amount paid to the Financial Advisor is dependent upon the PAR amount. You will find the 
fee schedule attached.  

These fees come out of different bond accounts depending on what type of bond, or which department 
will be spending funds from the bond. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of award to First Tryon Advisors for Financial Advisory Consulting Services 
for Beaufort County Debt Issues.  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Finance Committee to approve or deny award 

Move forward to County Council next meeting September 12, 2022 
 

20

Item 9.



Evaluators Name of Company Name of Company Name of Company   

First Tryon Advisors
PFM Financial 

Advisors Stephens
D. Butts 80 80 81
D. Christmas 81 75 76
C. Webb 90 85 85
H. Williams 79 68 65
TOTALS: 330 308 307

1. First Tryon Advisors 330
2. PFM Financial Advisors 308
3. Stephens 307

Financial Advisory Consulting Services for Beaufort County Debt Issues 

RFP 060722

Summary Score Sheet

21

Item 9.



 

 
 

 

  Beaufort County, South Carolina 

   

First Tryon Advisors - Pricing Proposal Addendum 

First Tryon proposes a simple approach regarding compensation which is fair to both the County and our team.  

Typically, prior to beginning any work with the County, First Tryon would work with County staff to establish a 

mutually agreeable level of compensation quoted on a flat fee basis taking into consideration the following 

factors: 

▪ Services to be provided; 

▪ Value provided;  

▪ Time and complexity of the assignment; 

▪ Potential long-term risk; 

▪ For transactional work: 

o Credit type (i.e. General Obligation Bonds, Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds, Limited 

Obligation Bonds, Lease Purchases, etc.); 

o Market (i.e. public market vs. bank market); 

o Method of sale (i.e. competitive vs. negotiated); 

o Par amount; and 

o Efficiencies of multiple transactions within a single series (i.e. new money and refunding). 

 

The table below sets forth First Tryon’s proposed not-to-exceed fee schedules per series of bonds for various 

credit types that the County may consider issuing in either the public markets or via a bank placement.  

 

Issuance Type  Public Offering Bank Placement 

General Obligation Bonds Not-to-Exceed $75,000 Not-to-Exceed $35,000 

Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds Not-to-Exceed $95,000 Not-to-Exceed $65,000 

Limited Obligation Bonds / Special Obligation Bonds1 Not-to-Exceed $85,000 Not-to-Exceed $50,000 

Lease Purchase N/A Not-to-Exceed $25,000 

For any services requested that fall outside of the scope of services related to the transactions noted above, 

First Tryon will negotiate a mutually agreeable flat fee that is acceptable to the County once the task is 

determined (i.e. interim financings, other credit structures, capital planning model). 
1 Assumes a pledged revenue stream with an appropriation backstop by the County’s General Fund. 

 

In addition to the compensation for professional services outlined above, First Tryon asks to be reimbursed 

for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with providing financial advisory services. Customary out-of-

pocket expenses include costs of travel, meals, lodging, etc.      

 

All fees may vary: (i) if material changes in the structure of a financing occur, or (ii) if unusual or unforeseen 

circumstances arise which require a significant increase in the type or scope of our responsibilities. If at any 

time we believe circumstances require an adjustment of our fees as set forth above, we will consult with you. 

 
 

We are not aware of any other financial advisory firm which makes the following commitment to its 

clients: 
 

If at any time the County believes that the services that were provided under a task order were not 

consistent with the fees First Tryon proposed, the County may unilaterally adjust the fee for such 

services to any amount the County deems appropriate, including zero. 

22

Item 9.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of award for Saint Helena Island Performing Arts Center Feasibility Study and Market 
Analysis Services for Beaufort County 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee August 22, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Dave Thomas; Director Procurement Services 

5 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Proposals were received on December 3, 2021. There were 6 firms that proposed. After the initial 
ranking, the top 4 ranked firms were interviewed. After the interviews a second round of scoring was 
done for those 4 firms. Johnson Consulting was then chosen as the highest ranked firm. See the 
attached Scoring Sheets for more detail.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The scope of work for this study and analysis contains 9 tasks to be included in the report. Those 
tasks are as follows: 

• Project Orientation, Initial
Fieldwork

• Economic, Demographic, and Destination Market
Analysis

• Performing Arts Center Trends • Review of Existing Performing Arts Centers and Lost 
Business

• Analysis of Comparable and
Competitive Facilities

• Recommendations

• Demand Projection • Financial Projection
• Preliminary Development Cost

Estimate
The Proposer stated that this project will take 12 weeks to complete. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

It is recommended to use either Council Supplemental (10001000-56000) or  ARPA Revenue Loss 

(23302060-51160) Funding for this project. Request to use $66,000 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Recommend contract award to Johnson Consulting in the amount of $66,000 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Recommend Finance Committee to approval. 

23

Item 10.



RFP 120321

Summary Score Sheet

Evaluators Name of Company Name of Company Name of Company   Name of Company   Name of Company   Name of Company   

AEA Consulting HVS Johnson Consulting
Keen Independent 

Research
AMS Planning & 

Research Webb Management
Y. Glover 71 67 80 64 82 84
E. Greenway 79 80 86 89 70 86
J. O'Toole 83 86 88 80 73 85
W. Richland 77 88 83 85 75 88
T. Vaughn 75 79 79 82 71 74
TOTALS: 385 400 416 400 371 417

1. Webb Management 417
2. Johnson Consulting 416
3. HVS 400
3. Keen Independent Research 400
4. AEA Consulting 385
5. AMS Planning & Research 371

Saint Helena Island, SC Performing Arts Center Feasability Study and Market Analysis Services for Beaufort County

24

Item 10.



RFP 120321

Summary Score Sheet

POST INTERVIEW EVALUATIONS

Evaluators Name of Company Name of Company   Name of Company   Name of Company   

HVS Johnson Consulting
Keen Independent 

Research Webb Management
Y. Glover 69 89 71 81
E. Greenway 72 88 88 82
J. O'Toole 86 88 80 85
W. Richland 86 88 89 88
T. Vaughn 76 95 91 87
TOTALS: 389 448 419 423

1. Johnson Consulting 448
2. Webb Management 423
3. Keen Independent Research 419
4. HVS 389

Saint Helena Island, SC Performing Arts Center Feasability Study and Market Analysis Services for Beaufort Co

25

Item 10.



SAINT HELENA ISLAND, SC PERFORMING ARTS CENTER FEASIBILITY STUDY AND MARKET ANALYSIS SERVICES | JUNE 23, 2022

 

1

FEE PROPOSAL

We propose to complete the scope of work detailed in this proposal for a total fee of $60,000 plus 
a $6,000 expense budget. Our expenses will only be billed if incurred, at cost. Expenses include 
travel, lodging, data purchase and presentation materials production.

TASK FEES

WORK PROGRAM

TASK 1 –  PROJECT ORIENTATION & INITIAL FIELDWORK $5,000

TASK 2 –  ECONOMIC, DEMOGRAPHIC AND DESTINATION MARKET 
ANALYSIS

$5,000 

TASK 3 – PERFORMING ARTS & EVENT CENTER TRENDS $4,000

TASK 4 – REVIEW OF EXISTING PERFORMING ARTS VENUES AND 
LOST BUSINESS

$4,000  

TASK 5 – IDENTIFICATION AND FACILITATION OF STAKEHOLDER 
ENGAGEMENT

$6,000

TASK 6 – ANALYSIS OF COMPARABLE AND COMPETITIVE FACILITIES $5,000

TASK 7 – RECOMMENDATIONS $6,000   

TASK 8 – DEMAND PROJECTIONS $6,000  

TASK 9 – FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS $6,000

TASK 10 – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT COST ESTIMATE $4,000

TASK 11 – ECONOMIC AND FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS $5,000

TASK 12 – FUNDING AND MARKETING $4,000

TOTAL $60,000

EXPENSES $6,000

GRAND TOTAL $66,000

26

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Purchase of Replacement Ambulances 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee 8/22/2022 2:00 PM 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Dave Thomas, Purchasing Director  

Howell Youmans, Deputy Director Emergency Medical Services  

15 Mins 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The Purchasing Department received a request from Beaufort County’s Emergency Medical Services 
Department to purchase two (2) new 2023 Ford 4X2 Transit Ambulance Type II conversion package to 
replace two older Ambulances on Daufuskie Island and two (2) new 2023 Ford 4X2 Ambulance Type I 
to replace two (2) older Ambulances. This purchase request will use the HGAC Buy Cooperative 
Contract, a National Cooperative contract used by state and local governments.  

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Ambulance fleet replacement 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Account #10401230-54000, Vehicle Purchases 

Type I Ambulances: $278,112.00 each plus $500.00 SC Sales Tax each X2= $557,244.00 

Type II Ambulance: $129,498.00 each plus $500.00 SC Sales Tax each X2= $259,996.00 

Total contract for (4) ambulances                                                                       $817,220.00  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

The Finance Committee approve and recommend to full County Council the contract award to 
purchase four (4) new ambulances from the HGAC Buy Cooperative contractor for a total cost of 
$817,220.00. 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny purchase of four (4) replacement ambulances to full County Council. 

 

 

27

Item 11.



28

Item 11.



29

Item 11.



30

Item 11.



31

Item 11.



32

Item 11.



33

Item 11.



34

Item 11.



35

Item 11.



36

Item 11.



37

Item 11.



38

Item 11.



39

Item 11.



40

Item 11.



41

Item 11.



42

Item 11.



43

Item 11.



44

Item 11.



45

Item 11.



46

Item 11.



47

Item 11.



48

Item 11.



49

Item 11.



50

Item 11.



51

Item 11.



52

Item 11.



53

Item 11.



                      Non-Compe��ve Purchases Form                  
 

 This form shall be completed for any non-compe��ve purchase that is not exempt.
 

(a)A County contract may be awarded without compe��on when the Purchasing Director determines in wri�ng, a�er conduc�ng a good faith review of
available sources, that there is only one source for the required supply, service, or construc�on item.  The Purchasing Director shall conduct nego�a�ons, as
appropriate, as to price, delivery, and terms.  A record of sole source procurements shall be maintained as public record and shall list each contractor’s name, the
amount and type of each contract, a lis�ng of the items procured under each contract, and the iden�fica�on of each contract file. 
(b)Sole source procurement of a used item from the open market may only be considered, provided that:

(1) The using agency recommends purchase; (2) condi�on of the item is verified by appropriate County official; and (3) price analysis jus�fies purchase
when the following factors are considered: (a) new acquisi�on price; (b) current book value; and (c) maintenance costs.

Code 1982 SS 12-19 Sec. 2-518 Sole source procurement

 
The County Council may by resolu�on, exempt specific supplies or services from the purchasing procedures required in the Code.  The following supplies and
services shall be exempt from the purchasing procedures required in this division; however, the Purchasing Director for just cause may limit or withdraw any
exemp�on provided for in this sec�on. (1) Works of art for museum and public display (2) Published books, library books, maps, periodicals, technical pamphlets
(3) Copyrighted educa�onal films, filmstrips, slides and transparencies (4) Postage stamps and postal fees (5) Professional dues, membership fees and seminar
registra�on fees (6) Medicine and drugs (7) U�li�es including gas, electric, water and sewer (8) Adver�sements in professional publica�ons or newspapers (9)
Fresh fruit, vegetables, meats, fish, milk, bread and eggs  (10) Oil company credit cards (11) Ar�cles for commercial sale by all governmental bodies
Code 1982 SS 12-14 Ord. No. 2000-1 S 1, 1-1-0-2000 Sec. 2-514 Exemp�on from procedures

 
Notwithstanding any other sec�on of this division, the Purchasing Director may make or authorize others to make emergency procurements of supplies, services,
or construc�on items when there exists a threat to the func�oning of county government; for the preserva�on or protec�on of property; or for the health,
welfare or safety of any person, provided that such emergency procurements shall be made with such compe��on as is prac�cable under the circumstances.  A
wri�en determina�on of the basis for the emergency and for the selec�on of the par�cular contractor shall be included in the contract file.  As soon as
prac�cable, a record of each emergency procurement shall be made and shall set forth the contractor’s name, the amount and type of the contract, a lis�ng of
the items procured under the contract, and the iden�fica�on number of the contract file.
Code 1982 SS 12-20 Sec. 2-519 Emergency procurements

 

Reques�ng Department:   Requested Account Code: 

Department Head Email: 
Descrip�on of Requested Services:

Please provide a lis�ng of the items purchased, if addi�onal pages are necessary please a�ach to this form:

Cost of Requested Services: 

Requested Vendor Name: 

Requested Vendor Address: 

Requested Vendor Phone Number:    Requested Vendor Email Address:
Type of Service Requested (Please check one)    Construc�on            Service           Supply/Good        
Please a�ach any documenta�on provided by the vendor that provides back up for the claims in this document. 

A�achments:

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 1230

downby@bcgov.net

Type II (Transit Van) Ambulances

1520 Running Boards, GS13 Rear Step, Vanner 12-1050 CUL-DC, 45L6 Le� Scene Lights LED, 45T6 Rear Load Lights LED, 0705
110/12 HEAT/AC, Chassis Increase Dual wheel, Conversion Increase on Extended Length 

0l-FM-4WH2 ALUMINUM WHEELS, 05-HA-13HX CONDENSER ACC X717, 02-BC-0500 WALK THRU CAB HIGH, 04-EA-1474 RU
04-BW-6007 REAR BUMPER, 06-IG-03 IO VANNER 20-1050 CUL, 07-01-SEIV WISE CHILD SAFETY SEAT, 07-CA-48ZT SOLID SUR
02-B8-ID80 BODY MODIFICATION, 04-BW-DP00 SKIRT RAILS - DIP, LIQUID SPRING SUSPENSION, 05-EL-2324 STOP/TAIL WHEL
05-EL-2436 BACKUP WHELEN M9, 05-EL-256B ENTRY DOOR LIGHTS, 05-EL-45L4 LEFT SCENE LIGHTS, 05-EL-45TA RIGHT SCEN
05-EL-46R4 REAR LOAD LIGHTS, 05-PM-LRK3 WHELEN M9 WARNING LIGHTS, 05-PM-LRK3 WHELEN M9 WARNING LIGHTS, G
CHASSIS CHANGE - FORD F-450 4X2 SUPER CAB, 04-BW-DP20 ALUM. REAR KICK PLATE, 05-HA-0654 DANHARD 125 V AC SYS
"06-EC-3070 RECORDING SYSTEM, 08-OS-0500 ZICO 02 LIFT, 07-CA-4900 SOLID SURFACE TELEMETRY:, 07-WC-LPH7 LIFE PAK

$826,240.00

Northwestern Emergency Vehicles Transit Ambulance

268 NWEV Drive, West Jefferson, NC 28694

336-977-1015 david@nwev.com

54

Item 11.



A�achments:

Ambulance New Letter for County Council
Transit Type II.docx  
13.37 KB

Northwestern Emergency Vehicles Transit
Ambulance.pdf  
845.28 KB

Northwestern Emergency Vehicles Type I
Ambulance.pdf  
1.29 MB

Ambulance New Letter for County Council
Type I.docx  
13.32 KB

Email Verification.pdf  
655.56 KB

No file attached

 

Please select a reason below as to why this is a non-compe��ve purchase and provide a brief explana�on.

It is not possible to obtain compe��on. There is only one source available for the supply, service, or construc�on
item.

The procurement is for a used item from the open market. The item may only be considered if, (1) the using
agency recommends purchase, (2) condi�on of the item is verified by appropriate County official, (3) Price
analysis jus�fies purchase when the following factors are considered: (a) new acquisi�on price; (b) current book
value; and (c) maintenance costs.

The item is a single source purchase. Other sources may be available but purchases are directed to one source
because of factors unique to Beaufort County. Please select an op�on below:

      Standardiza�on
 

     Warranty
 

     Other, if selected please specify below.
 

An emergency exists that threatens the func�oning of County government.

An emergency exists that threatens the preserva�on or protec�on of County property.

What steps have been taken to verify that these features are not available elsewhere?

Other brands/manufacturers were examined (please list names and contact informa�on, and explain why they
are not suitable for use by the County-a�ach addi�onal pages as necessary):
 

 
Other vendors were contracted (please list names and contact informa�on and explain why those contacted did
not meet the needs of the County-a�ach addi�onal pages as necessary):
 

Form Completed By:                               Date: 

*** Department Head Sec�on ***

Department Head Signature:                               Date: 

*** Purchasing Review Sec�on ***

Date Received in Purchasing Department: 

sara.rodriguez 8/1/2022

downby 8/1/2022

8/1/2022
55

Item 11.



    Reviewed by Purchasing Department for completeness

Date:  

Reviewed by:  

Verified that this is the only source:            Yes        No    

Comments:

Purchasing Director Signature:  Approve  Disapprove         
                                                                                                                                                                                                  Date / Time

Associated Purchase Orders Number:  

Associated Contract Number:  

*** Purchasing Comple�on Sec�on ***

Process Complete:                       Date:   

Submi�ed:

 
 
 

8/1/2022

dthomas

This is for two remount ambulances and two new ambulances with equipment.  The price is from the HGAC Buy  
coopera�ve contract for government organiza�ons. Vehicles will be built during FY23.

dthomas 8/1/2022 11:53:02 AM

victoria.moyer 8/1/2022
11:53:57 AM

8/1/2022

56

Item 11.



 

57

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

ARPA – GOOD NEIGHBOR PROGRAM – MUNICIPALITY FUNDING REQUESTS 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee – 08/22/2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hank Amundson – Special Projects Director 

5 Minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

ARPA funds were accepted and budgeted by Beaufort earlier in 2022.  One program is 
named the "Good Neighbor Program".  It is an allocation of $500,000 per municipality within 
the Beaufort County.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The Good Neighbor Program was an approved use of the ARPA funds as accepted by County Council 
in early 2022.  The Good Neighbor Program was established in an effort by the County to support the 
municipalities’ recovery efforts with supplemental ARPA funds.   

 

Requests for these funds must be made by the Municipalities to ensure that the initiatives/programs 
funded in the municipalities conforms with ARPA guidelines.  County staff will be tasked with 
reviewing requests prior to submission and monitoring uses and expenditures after disbursement, as 
required by the Federal reporting requirements. 

The City of Beaufort has requested the first half of the allocation and is considering the second 
portion.  Proposed uses are in the request that is attached. 

The Town of Port Royal has requested their full allocation.  The request is attached. 

The Town of Yemassee has made a partial fund request.  See attached. Beaufort County Engineering 
will be handling project planning and construction under  

All proposed uses fit within the ARPA guidelines. 

  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

ARPA funds have been allocated. 

These requests total $950,000 and are broken down as follows: 

City of Beaufort - $250,000  

Town of Port Royal - $500,000 

Town of Yemassee - $200,000 (Allows for contingency and lighting) 

  

58

Item 12.



STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of these requests. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve or deny staff recommendation to disperse and monitor ARPA GOOD NEIGHBOR 
PROGRAM funds. 

Next Step – Move forward to County Council for a motion to approve or deny staff recommendation to 
disperse and monitor ARPA GOOD NEIGHBOR PROGRAM funds. 

 

59

Item 12.



60

Item 12.



Conceptual Plan

+/- 1,000 LF Sidewalk

Castle Hall Road

Town of Yemassee, South Carolina

N

Project No.: 21246-0025

July 8, 2022

Prepared by Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.

NOTE: A BOUNDARY AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY ALONG WITH A WETLAND DELINEATION SHOULD BE

PERFORMED TO DETERMINE ACCURATE BOUNDARY, TOPOGRAPHIC, AND WETLAND LOCATIONS.

PROPOSED SIDEWALK (±1,000 LF)

CONNECT TO EXISTING SIDEWALK

INSTALL GUARD RAIL BARRIER

END OF PROPOSED SIDEWALK

APPROXIMATE WETLANDS (NWI)

PROPOSED STREET LIGHTS (10)

APPROXIMATELY EVERY 100 LF

61

Item 12.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
450

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASTLE HALL ROAD (S-73)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HART STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL STREET



Preliminary Cost Opinion 

+/-  1,000 LF Concrete Sidewalk

Castle Hall Road 

Town of Yemassee

Beaufort County, South Carolina

No. Quantity Unit Item Description Unit Price Total

1 1 LS Mobilization/Bonds 5,000$  5,000$  

2 1 LS Traffic Control 25,000$   25,000$  

3 1,100 LF Silt Fence 4$  4,400$  

4 5 EA Sediment Tubes (24-Inch Height, 8-Foot Length) 100$  500$  

5 0.2 AC Clearing and Grubbing 5,000$  1,000$  

6 1 LS Guard Rail Installation (+/- 30 LF) 7,000$  7,000$  

7 200 CY Earthwork (Excavate One FT Depth - Replace with Fill) 40$  8,000$  

8 600 SY Concrete (4-Inch Thick, 150 psi) 80$  48,000$  
9 1 LS Grassing 4,000$  4,000$  

Subtotal: 97,900$  

Contingency: 10,000$  

Surveying : 7,500$  

Engineering Design and Permitting: 7,500$  

Bidding and Award: 6,500$  

Construction Administration and Site Observation: 6,500$  

Construction Materials Testing: 5,000$  
Notice of Termination/Project Closeout: 5,000$  

Site Preparation Total: 150,000$  

Notes:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

Approximately 1,000 LF Concrete Sidewalk (5-Foot Width)

represent only Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.'s judgment as a professional opinion and are supplied for 

Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc. does not guarantee the accuracy of probable costs.  Such probable costs 

costs represent Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.'s judgement and are for the general guidance of 
the Town of Yemassee. 

All costs are 2022 costs based on $114/barrel for crude oil.

Estimate is based on the Conceptual Plan prepared by Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc. dated March 25, 

2022.

Unit Prices and quantities are subject to variation upon final design.

Preliminary Cost Opinion does not include any permitting or impact fees associated with the Town of 

Yemassee, Beaufort County, SCDOT or SCDHEC.

Preliminary Cost Opinion does not include any allowances for Easements or acquisitions of

Right of Way which is not anticipated.

Estimate does not include costs for wetland delineations or mitigation which is not anticipated.

March 25, 2022

Project No.: P21246-0025

Page 1 of 1

PRELIMINARY

Prepared by: Alliance Consulting Engineers, Inc.

62

Item 12.



From: Reece Bertholf <rbertholf@cityofbeaufort.org>  
Sent: Thursday, June 23, 2022 1:39 PM 
To: Amundson, Hank <henry.amundson@bcgov.net> 
Cc: William Prokop [wprokop@cityofbeaufort.org] <wprokop@cityofbeaufort.org>; Alan Eisenman 
<aeisenman@cityofbeaufort.org> 
Subject: Good Neighbor Fund 
 
Good Afternoon Hank, 
 
We have revised our good neighbor fund requests to reflect the available $250,000. 
 
Below is our request to distribute the funds directly to the recipients and the associated contacts for the organizations: 
 

1. $100,000:  Beaufort Digital Corridor Cyber Scholarship Fund  
a. Jess Obrien – Executive Director 

Beaufort Digital Corridor 
500 Carteret Street, Suite D 
Beaufort, SC 29902 
USA 
PHONE: 843.470.3506 
MOBILE: 229.563.8319 
EMAIL: jess@beaufortdigital.com 
WEB: www.beaufortdigital.com 
 

2. $80,000 Technical College of the Lowcountry – Nursing School Equipment  
a. Janis Hoffman – VP of Administrative Services 

Vice President for Administrative Services 
Technical College of the Lowcountry 

921 Ribaut Road | PO Box 1288 

Beaufort, SC 29901-1288 

843.525.8251 | jhoffman@tcl.edu   

 
3. $24,000 – SC Nurse Retention Scholarship  

a. Bob Elliot  (I think this will ultimately go to the Community Foundation of the Low Country as they 
administer) 
ellbob4901@gmail.com 
https://scnurseretention.org/ 
 

4. $46,000 – potential city contribution to the Affordable Housing Trust fund  
a. Please keep the funds on deposit with the county. 

 
Thank you.  Please call with any questions. 
 
Reece 
 

Reece Bertholf 

Deputy City Manager 

City of Beaufort 
843-379-7525 (o)  
843-754-9144 (c) 
www.cityofbeaufort.org 
 

 

 

63

Item 12.

mailto:rbertholf@cityofbeaufort.org
mailto:henry.amundson@bcgov.net
mailto:wprokop@cityofbeaufort.org
mailto:aeisenman@cityofbeaufort.org
mailto:jess@beaufortdigital.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.beaufortdigital.com/__;!!H5U1HoZiDaw1SX31!GfYn_QESLi47Enx6orAqILXwD75lsVIeoDpcyaoe_YV61EjidS__ZINo3CqhNeYu4hokRUgJ24yxAwJUzvH5pnrz1lpO9lM$
mailto:jhoffman@tcl.edu
mailto:ellbob4901@gmail.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/scnurseretention.org/__;!!H5U1HoZiDaw1SX31!GfYn_QESLi47Enx6orAqILXwD75lsVIeoDpcyaoe_YV61EjidS__ZINo3CqhNeYu4hokRUgJ24yxAwJUzvH5pnrzzK43GeA$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.cityofbeaufort.org/__;!!H5U1HoZiDaw1SX31!GfYn_QESLi47Enx6orAqILXwD75lsVIeoDpcyaoe_YV61EjidS__ZINo3CqhNeYu4hokRUgJ24yxAwJUzvH5pnrzXEup7ck$


 
 
 
 
Council 
 
Joe DeVito 
Mayor 
 
Darryl Owens 
Mayor Pro Tempore 
 
Jerry Ashmore 
Mary Beth Heyward 
Kevin Phillips 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Van Willis 
Town Manager 
 
T. Alan Beach 
Chief of Police 
 
Jeffrey S. Coppinger 
Operations 
 
Noah Krepps 
Planning 
 

 

PO Drawer 9 • Port Royal, SC 29935-0009 • Telephone (843) 986-2200 • Fax (843) 986-2210 
www.portroyal.org 

August 15, 2022 

 

Beaufort County 

Mr. Hank Amundson, Special Projects Director 

 

 

Re: Good Neighbor Fund  

 

Dear Hank: 

 

The Town intends to use a portion of its designated Good Neighbors Funds for the anticipated first year 

funding of the recently established Housing Trust.  It is anticipated, based upon the recommended 

formula for funding, that the Town will be asked to contribute 3% of its ARPA funds.  The Town will 

earmark approximately $162,000 from the Good Neighbor Fund to satisfy the funding request. 

 

The balance of the Good Neighbor Fund will be used to offset the costs of a sewer construction project 

in the Royal Palms/Narcissus portion of Town.  The Town was a recipient of a CDBG, but due to cost 

overruns, the initial estimates for construction, approximately $900,000, have increased to $1,300,000.  

The Good Neighbor Fund will allow the Town to fulfill the contract. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Van Willis 

Town Manager 

64

Item 12.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Hilton Head Public Service District ARPA Projects Request 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee August 22nd 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Consideration of authorization for the County Administrator to award one million (1,000,000.00) in ARPA 
funds to the Hilton Head Public Service District for improvements to the HHPSD infrastructure. (10 min) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

N/A 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Hilton Head Public Service District (PSD) is seeking funding from Beaufort County’s allocation of federal 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds to complete vital water supply projects for Hilton Head Island. (See 
attached project description)  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

$1,000,000.00 from the ARPA allocation.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

The staff is concerned this will set a precedent for other PSDs throughout the county to submit similar 
requests for infrastructure upgrades and improvements that would be more appropriately funded by PSD 
assessments/fees. However, if Council elects to fund this request please be aware that additional requests 
will be likely.  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve the allocation  

Motion to deny the allocation 

 

65

Item 13.



1 
 

 
 

Hilton Head Public Service District 

21 Oak Park Drive 

Hilton Head Island, SC 29926 

Hhpsd.com 
 

Mr. Eric Greenway 

Beaufort County Administrator 

P.O. Drawer 1228 

Beaufort, SC 29901 

Re: Hilton Head Public Service District ARPA Projects Request 

July 5, 2022 

Dear Eric: 

Hilton Head Public Service District (PSD) is seeking funding from Beaufort County’s allocation of federal American Rescue 

Plan Act (ARPA) funds in order to complete vital water supply projects for Hilton Head Island. As Governor McMaster has 

said, “The right water and sewer systems in a county can transform a tax base, creating jobs, good schools, and a vibrant 

community.” He has urged the investment of ARPA funds in our water infrastructure in order to “ensure that South 

Carolina will have the workforce, the infrastructure, and the quality of life necessary to compete nationally and globally 

for jobs and investment – for generations to come.” 

The PSD’s water and wastewater infrastructure projects described below are an appropriate use of ARPA funds as they 

are long-term capital improvements that strengthen critical services to residents and businesses on Hilton Head Island 

and create a more resilient community with confidence in its capacity to support future opportunities for growth and 

economic development. As you know, Hilton Head Island’s viability and sustainability is crucial to the future of all of 

Beaufort County. 

The table below provides you the vital projects that we will complete using the ARPA funding from Beaufort County. 

These projects can be completed in accordance with all ARPA guidelines. 

Project Purpose Cost 

Leg O’ Mutton Water Booster Station A new Water Booster Station at 
the PSD’s Leg O’ Mutton site will 
play a critical role in providing 
water service for our residents and 
businesses. The Booster Station 
will ensure that the PSD’s water 
can be delivered to our customers 
at all times and particularly during 
times of high demand and even 
when coupling a high-demand 
period with an emergency use of 

$700,000.00 

66

Item 13.



2 
 

water such as firefighting. The 
Booster Station will play a key role 
in the PSD’s response to and 
recovery from a natural disaster 
such as a hurricane because it 
provides the pumping capacity 
needed to repressurize our water 
distribution system following an 
outage or disruption. Further, the 
Booster Station will mitigate the 
impact of the ongoing 
phenomenon of saltwater 
intrusion into our freshwater 
aquifer by providing a pumping 
asset to replace the loss of 
freshwater wells. 

Reverse Osmosis (RO) Drinking 
Water Treatment Facility Emergency 
Generator 

An emergency generator at the 
PSD’s RO Facility will help ensure 
resiliency during natural disasters 
such as hurricanes, when power 
outages can affect the PSD’s ability 
to provide drinking water. The RO 
Facility provides approximately 
60% of the PSD’s water supply at a 
capacity of 4 million gallons of 
water produced per day. The PSD 
has plans to expand the capacity of 
the RO Facility up to 6 million 
gallons a day production, which 
would represent the majority of 
the PSD’s average daily demand 
for water. The RO Facility plays a 
vital role in the water supply for all 
of southern Beaufort County 
because its use helps the PSD 
lessen its demand on wholesale 
water provided by Beaufort-Jasper 
Water & Sewer Authority, thereby 
helping BJWSA meets its own 
system’s demand for water, 
particularly during periods of high 
demand. The RO Facility currently 
has no emergency generator, and 
the addition of this equipment will 
ensure the Facility’s ability to keep 
providing water during unplanned 
power outages and during 
response to and recovery from 
natural disasters such as 
hurricanes. 

$300,000.00 

Total Request  $1,000,000.00 

67

Item 13.



3 
 

 

We thank you in advance for your consideration of these projects for funding through Beaufort County’s ARPA funds. 

Our local water and wastewater systems represent our best and most direct investment in Hilton Head Island’s public 

health and environmental protection – maintaining our high quality of life for generations of residents and visitors to 

come. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or if I can be of assistance in any way. 

 

Best regards, 

 
 

Pete Nardi 

General Manager 

Hilton Head PSD 

(843) 305-0638 

pnardi@hhpsd.com 

 

Cc:  

Councilman Larry McEllyn, Beaufort County Council, District 10 

Chair Frank Turano, Hilton Head Public Service District Commission, District 3 

 

68

Item 13.



. . ..

Beaufort County Council Statement of Conflict of Interest 
Pursuant to South Carolina Code of Laws § 8-13-700 

I, Chris Hervochon, holding the position as a Beaufort County Council Member, do hereby declare my 

potential conflict of interest with regards to the below information: 

1. Describe the matter pending before County Council with which you may have a conflict of interest:

Item number 13 of the Finance Committee meeting regarding the approval of the Hilton Head Public 

Service District ARP A projects request. 

2. Describe the interest that you have that may give rise to the conflict: The Hilton Head Public Service

District is a material client of one of the clients my public accounting firm serves. 

Based upon the above information, I hereby recuse myself from participating in any discussions of or 

taking official action relating to said matter. 

Signed this 22nd day of August, 2022. 

Signature 

69

Item 13.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE HIRING OF AN ADDITIONAL FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE IN 

THE PUBLIC DEFENDER’S OFFICE TO SERVE COLLETON COUNTY 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee; August 22, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Whitney Richland, Deputy Administrator  

10 Minutes  

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Pursuant to S.C. Code Sec. 17-3-540, Beaufort County is the administrative County for the 14th Circuit 
Public Defender’s Office.  The Public Defender desires to hire an additional full-time attorney to work 
specifically in Colleton County and Colleton County has agreed to fully fund the additional full-time 
attorney.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  

$90,000 in revenue from Colleton County  

$90,000 in expenses from Public Defender’s special revenue fund  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the Public Defender’s full-time employee  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny the Public Defender’s full-time employee  

 

 

70

Item 14.



RESOLUTION 2022/______ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE HIRING OF AN ADDITIONAL FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE 

IN THE PUBLIC DEFENDER’S OFFICE TO SERVE COLLETON COUNTY 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to S.C. Code Sec. 17-3-540, the 14th Circuit Public Defender’s office 

(“Public Defender”) entered into an agreement with Beaufort County (“County”) established the County as 

its administrative county; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to S.C. Code Sec. 17-3-540, the employees hired by the Public Defender 

are considered employees of the County, but serve at the pleasure of the Public Defender; and  

WHEREAS, the Public Defender desires to hire additional full-time employee (“FTE”) to 

specifically work in Colleton County, which is a county within the 14th Circuit jurisdiction; and  

WHEREAS, Colleton County has agreed to fully fund the additional FTE and as the administrative 

County, Beaufort County desires to approve the FTE for the benefit of Colleton County.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by Beaufort County Council hereby approves the 

hiring of an additional full-time employee in the public defender’s office to serve Colleton County.  

DONE this _______ day of August, 2022.  

 

     COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

     BY:_____________________________________ 

      Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council  

 

 

71

Item 14.



72

Item 14.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

DISCUSSION OF AN ORDINANCE TO ALLOCATE THE PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF THE MYRTLE BUSINESS 
PARK TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SITE AND JOB FUND 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Finance Committee; August 22, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

John O’Toole, Executive Director, Beaufort County Economic Development Corporation 

10 Minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The Myrtle Business Park (“Property”) was sold May 2022.  The proceeds from the sale were in the amount 
of $599,979.19 and have been deposited into the County’s General Fund.   

The Beaufort County Economic Development Corporation (“EDC”) is requesting the proceeds from the sale 
of the Property be allocated to EDC’s Site Development and Job Fund (“Job Fund”).    

The EDC previously presented to the Finance Committee on February 18, 2020, requesting the proceeds from 
the sale of the Property to be deposited into the EDC’s Job Fund.  The Committee voted to move to full County 
Council after the sale of the Property a resolution for the proceeds of the Myrtle Business Park to be deposited 
into the EDC’s Site Development and Job Fund.   

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The Beaufort County Economic Development Corporation requests that the proceeds from the sale of Myrtle 
Business Park ($599,979.19) be allocated into the Economic Development Site and Job Fund. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

$599,979.19 (proceeds from sale) 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Not Approve 

Move forward to Council for First Reading 

 

73

Item 15.



ORDINANCE 2020/______ 

AN ORDINANCE TO ALLOCATE THE PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF THE 

MYRTLE BUSINESS PARK TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SITE AND JOB 

FUND 

 

WHEREAS, On or about May 5, 2022, Beaufort County sold the real property with tax 

map number R600 031 000 1624 000 consisting of approximately 7.714 acres commonly known 

as the Myrtle Business Park (the “Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the sale of the Property produced proceeds in the amount of $599,979.19 

which have been deposited in the Beaufort County General Fund account; and  

WHEREAS, the Beaufort County Economic Development Corporation (“EDC”) is an 

entity financially supported by Beaufort County (“County”) for the purpose of organizing, 

structuring, and leading economic development efforts on behalf of the County (“Purpose”); and   

WHEREAS, the EDC requests for the proceeds from the sale of the Property be allocated 

to the Economic Development Site and Job Fund in order to assist its Purpose; and   

WHEREAS, County Council finds that allocating the proceeds from the sale of the 

Property to the Economic development Site and Job Fund is in the best interest of the County, and 

its citizens and residents.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by Beaufort County Council, at a duly 

assembled meeting, hereby approves the allocation of the proceeds in the amount of $599,979.19 

from the sale of the Myrtle Business Park to the Economic Development Site and Job Fund.  

 

 

 Adopted this _____ day of ____________, 2022. 

 COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

 

 

 BY:______________________________________ 

 Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Court 

 

74

Item 15.



 

75

Item 15.



 

 
  

Agenda Item Summary  

Item Title:  

Offer of payment to final group of retirees for loss of post-retirement health insurance benefits 

  

Council Committee:  

Finance Committee 

  

Meeting Date:  

March 21, 2022 

  

Committee Presenter (Name and Title):  

  Kurt Taylor, County Attorney 
  10 mins 

  

Issues for Consideration:  

This item is in response to additional requests from retirees to be included in council’s offer of a payment to non-litigating retirees for the loss of 
the retiree health insurance subsidy. This group would the criteria used to determine eligibility were a) the retiree worked for the county for at 
least 15 years, b) had health insurance at the time of their retirement, c) their life expectancy, and d), retired up to July 1, 2021. In the last 
payment, the group was limited to persons who retired before July 1, 2016, the date the insurance program ended. 

  

Points to Consider:  

  

Council is not obligated to make such a payment offer, but has expressed a desire to do so. For retirees to receive a payment, a signed release 
will be required.  

Funding & Liability Factors:  

  

Staff recommends a total aggregate offer of $184,034.63 be divided among 86 eligible retirees. 

  

Council Options:  

  

 Approve or disapprove the offer of payment 
  
  

  

Recommendation:  

  

 Approve the offer of payment 
  
  

 -  DO NOT EXCEED ONE PAGE -  

Created January 2019  

  
  

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL   

76

Item 16.


	Top
	Item 5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	06.20.22 Finance Committee

	Item 8.	Discussion and presentation of year to date financial statements for FY 2023.
	AIS Financial Statements
	Fiancials 07.31.2022
	Finance Financial Report July 2022 v3

	Item 9.	Financial Advisory Consulting Services for Beaufort County Debt Issues
	AIS Committee Packet - Financial Consulting Services

	Item 10.	Saint Helena Island, SC Performing Arts Center Feasibility Study and Market Analysis Services for Beaufort County
	AIS Packet for Finance Committee REV 062722

	Item 11.	EMS VIC Approval 8.9.22
	AIS.Northwestern Em. Vehicles EMS
	doc02369220220706135636
	Northwestern Emergency Vehicles Type I Ambulance
	Northwestern Emergency Vehicles Transit Ambulance
	doc02369320220706135727
	doc02369120220706135621
	doc02369420220706135742
	Non-Competitive Purchases Form Northwestern Emergency Vehicle

	Item 12.	ARPA - GOOD NEIGHBOR PROGRAM - MUNICIPALITY FUNDING REQUESTS
	AIS-ARPA-GOOD NEIGHBOR PROGRAM-8-22-22 Funding Request
	Yemassee - castle hall sidewalk submission
	BFT-First Half Funding Request
	Port Royal - Good Neighbor Request Letter

	Item 13.	Hilton Head Public Service District ARPA Projects Request
	AIS- Hilton Head Public Service District ARPA Projects Request
	Hilton Head PSD ARPA Request to Beaufort County 070522
	Recusal Request Form - 22-08-22

	Item 14.	A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE HIRING OF AN ADDITIONAL FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE IN THE PUBLIC DEFENDER’S OFFICE TO SERVE COLLETON COUNTY
	AIS - Public Defender FTE
	FTE Public Defender Resolution
	Colleton Co Public Defender Funding 22_23

	Item 15.	RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE TO ALLOCATE THE PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF THE MYRTLE BUSINESS PARK TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SITE AND JOB FUND
	Myrtle Business Park AIS
	Ordinance, Allocation Myrtle Park Funds

	Item 16.	Retiree Litigation
	Agenda Item Summary for final group of non-litigating retirees payment in lieu of health insurance subsidy 3-15-22

	Bottom

